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The following answers do not have the affect of revising or amending the RFP in any way unless expressly stated that there is a revision to the RFP associated with the specific response.

1.  QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
An answer to a particular question, unless identified as an amendment to this RFP, does not change the requirement under the RFP.
Q1.  Developing competitive IDIQ pricing is dependent upon an understanding of the potential quantities and the timing of orders.  Launch Service costs are strongly influenced by an offeror’s ability to project demand and order multiple quantities of parts and equipment.  Since there are no firm, option or sample missions listed in the RFP , a Mission Model/Manifest would allow offerors to develop a pricing strategy that would reflect some degree of realism.  Would the Government be able to release a current Mission Model/Manifest that would provide the offerors an understanding of the potential order quantities and timing?

A1.  At this time we do not have a releaseable manifest.  NASA’s requirements for this launch class historically have been one to two missions per year.

Q2.  In Section B, Paragraph 1.6 of the RFP, the Government states “The maximum order quantity for this IDIQ contract protion is thirty (30) Launch Service Task Orders and associated non-standard services/mission unique services.”  As the RFP now reflects a performance range from a minimum capability of 250 kg, does the maximum order quantity of 30 encompass all possible NLS orders or just those orders from the 250 kg range upward to the original 1500 kg range?

A2.  The maximum order quantity of 30 applies to launch services ordered under each newly awarded NLS IDIQ contract.

Q3.  With the new expanded performance range of the NLS contract, would LSTOs be issued for all contractors to respond, or would the Government issue a Requst for Launch Service Proposals only from those contractors with performance capability within certain or specific ranges?

A3.  Under the terms of the NLS contract all contractors will be provided a fair opportunity to be considered and expected to provide a proposal for all Requests for Launch Service Proposals (RLSPs).  Contractors are expected to respond with a proposal  in accordance with Section C, paragraph 14.3 (C) unless a waiver is requested and granted.

Q4.  Also, will the Government confirm that in order to bid on all NASA launch services between CY2004 and CY2010 the Contractor(s) must be a holder of an NLS IDIQ contract?

A4.  No.  This is not a requirements contract.  You must be an NLS IDIQ contract holder to propose launch services for NLS requirements, but a new service is not required to be awarded exclusively through the NLS contracts.

Q5.  In Section E2, paragraph 13.6, the RFP states that all Section D contract attachments, exhibits and plans are to be included in Volume 4.  However, there is no specific instruction regarding the placement of plans in either Volume 1 or Volume 2.  Does the Government have any specific requirement as to the placement of the required plans in either of these proposal volumes for evaluation purposes?

A5.  Attachment E2 13.6
Section D - Documents, Exhibits, and Attachments
Offerors shall follow instructions and fully comply with the technical proposal instructions to provide data and information for all SOW tables, exhibits and attachments.   All Section D exhibits, and attachments listed on Table E2-A for Volume 1 shall be placed in the Technical Acceptability Volume 1.  All other contract attachments, exhibits, and plans shall be included as part of its Volume 4, Contract Volume.  A complete description of all launch services proposed shall be contained in the SOW Exhibits 1 through 3.
(RFP is revised as described above.  See amendment)

Q6.  Place in both volumes?  

A6.  No.

Q7.  In Section  E2, paragraph 15.1(B), regarding Volume 1. the Government states that the offeror shall provide all data/information labeled TBP.  These TBPs will be included in the Volume 4; however, there is no specific instruction as to how to present these data in Volume 1.  Does the Government have any specific requirement as to the placement or presentation methods for presenting the TBPs for evaluation?

A7.  The RFP will be amended as follows:
Attachment E2.     15.1
Introduction

(B)
The Offeror shall provide all data/information labeled TBP in the SOW, its exhibits, and attachments and show it as BOLDED right in the SOW section where it goes as well as reference it in the Technical Proposal area.
(RFP is revised as described above.  See amendment)

Q8.  The proposal asks for a Quality Management Plan that addreses the 20 elements of ISO 9000/2000.  ISO 9000/2000 is definitions document versus the document outlining the quality management system requirements.  In addition, there are no longer 20 elements of ISO 9001.  The 2000 version eliminated the 20 elements.  We need to ask them what they really want the Quality Management Plan to address.

A8.  The ISO 9001/1994 requirement had 20 elements.  The new ISO 9000/2000 has eight elements with subparagraphs.  The offeror Quality Management Plan needs to address all eight elements in their entirety.  The offeror needs to be ISO Third Party Certified to the ISO 9000/2000 revision.
The RFP will be amended as follows:

Attachment E2   15.2.5.3   Quality Assurance

The Offeror shall submit a detailed Quality Management Plan.  This plan must address all the elements of ISO 9000, describe techniques to be used to link and incorporate quality standards and practices into specific procedures, and describe the approach and standards used to evaluate the quality systems of sub-contractors that are not ISO certified.  This plan is excluded from the page count limitations set in Table E2-A.

(RFP is revised as described above.  See amendment)

Q9.  The RFP says (page E2-9) that proposal (excluding pricing) shall be printed on two sides.  Will the SEB mind if we did it single-sided?  It helps with the reproduction process as some machines dislike double-sided repro and the answer will help in planning the size of the notebook binders.

A9.  Due to review and storage constraints, the RFP printing requirements remain as stated.

Q10.  An RFP on SELVS requires compliance with NASA Launch Services Risk Management Plan KSC-PLN-2130 dated 2 Dec. 2003. RFP Page E-2-26, para. 15.2.2 does not include this document as a requirement.  Will you clarify whether the contractor should bid to the KSC document?
A10.  Yes, you should propose to the KSC-PLN-2130 document.  This will be included as a new DRL in the amendment.
(RFP is revised as described above.  See amendment)
Q11.  Does Domestic Launch Services mean launch from CONUS?

A11.  No.  A Domestic Launch Service provider as specified in the RFP Section E3, paragraph 1.0(B), is a minimum requirement to be considered for award of a NLS contract, and is addressed in the Commercial Space Act of 1998 as a "United States Commercial provider”.  Currently there are no specific requirements for the location of launch sites.

Q12.  How can new launch companies gain on-ramp for Category 2 or 3?  

A12.  By submitting a proposal during any open season which is fully compliant with the NLS solicitation.
Q13.  Should the contractor include the current SB/SDB percentage goals in RFP Section 13.5(A) and also the improved goals as specified in 13.5(B) in the SB/SDB Plan?  Typically, only one set of goals are included.

A13.  The contractor should propose goals in the subcontracting plan that are expected to be met.  Each year the contractor will review the subcontracting plan and adjust the goals according to each year’s anticipated subcontract awards, with the expectation of increasing SF/SDB participation.
Q14.  Please confirm that the $3.650 M in sections 19.4 and 19.5 are one and the same and that the total is not $7.3 M.  One subsection refers to the maximum liquidated damages amount and the other states maximum launch delay amount.  We have not construed these to be separate amounts but instead a restatement of the same cap amount.  Please clarify.

A14.  The maximum contractor liability for contractor caused launch delays that are covered under Section C, Clause 19.4 and 19.5, is capped at a maximum of $3.650 M.

Q15.  Can you provide us with a target date for the responses to our questions so that we can better plan our proposal activity?

A15.  Once the questions, comments and changes to the solicitation are completed and reviewed, an amendment will be distributed.  
Q16.  Pages D1-25 and D1-26, Section 7 Guideline Documents and Section 8 Reference Documents - please comment on whether these are really "compliance documents".   In particular, the reference documents section states that the contractor shall comply with the government's interpretation of these policies and instructions?

A16.  The contractor shall comply with the documents listed in Sections 7 and 8 to fully meet all contract requirements.  All Compliance documents are as listed in Attachment D1, paragraph 1.3.  The Guideline documents are as specified in Section 7.  The Reference documents in Section 8 are documents with which all NLS contractors shall also be expected to comply.  Further, Section 8 specifies that the Contractor shall comply with the Government’s “implementation” of these policies, not “interpretation”.

Q17.  From reading the RFP, the Contractor is aware of NASA’s desire to obtain fully compliant proposals including terms and conditions.  Certain clauses contain provisions that may impact cost and risk and alternatives might be suggested.  Should such clarifications be included in the Contracts Volume 4, possibly in a separate section, or included in the Pricing Volume?

A17.  Proposals must comply with the RFP.  Offerors are always free to identify/propose cost saving suggestions.  If you choose to do so, you must fully describe and justify any identified cost savings approaches and include them in Contracts Volume 4 of the proposal.

Description of Items being amended:
2.  Section B, Paragraph 3.1, General.  Delete: “firm or option” in first sentence (see attached change page)
3.  Section C, Paragraph  3.0, Launch Vehicle Qualification.  Added Note:  Where the term “qualification” is used when referring to Category 2 and 3 launch services, the term “qualification” or “qualified” is intended to be synonymous with the term “certification” or certified”.  (see attached change page)
4.  Section C, Paragraph 25.7.  Add:  (O) Contractor’s Risk Management Plan, Also add in Section D2, Table D2-A, DRL Item C3-6, Risk Management Plan and as Attachment D2, Statement of Work, DRL C3-6.  (see attached change page)
5.  Section E, Attachment E2, Paragraph 10.3(A), Table E2-A.  Volume 1, Delete Exhibit 6.  (see attached change page)
6.  Section E, Attachment E2, Paragraph 13.6, Section D – Documents, Exhibits, and Attachments  Change as follows:

Offerors shall follow instructions and fully comply with the technical proposal instructions to provide data and information for all SOW tables, exhibits and attachments.   The Offerors shall include all Section D exhibits, and attachments listed on Table E2-A for Volume 1 and place in Volume 1.  All other contract attachments, exhibits, and plans shall be included as part of its Volume 4, Contract Volume.  A complete description of all launch services proposed shall be contained in the SOW Exhibits 1 through 3.  (see attached change page)

7.  Section E, Attachment E2, Paragraph 15.1  Introduction  Change as follows:

B)
The Offeror shall provide all data/information labeled TBP in the SOW, its exhibits, and attachments and show it as BOLDED right in the SOW section where it goes as well as reference it in the Technical Proposal area.  (see attached change page)
8.   Section E, Attachment E2, Paragraph 15.2.5.3  Quality Assurance  Change as follows:
The Offeror shall submit a detailed Quality Management Plan.  This plan must address all the elements of ISO 9000, describe techniques to be used to link and incorporate quality standards and practices into specific procedures, and describe the approach and standards used to evaluate the quality systems of sub-contractors that are not ISO certified.  This plan is excluded from the page count limitations set in Table E2-A.  (see attached change page)
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